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CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting of Capital Finvest Limited will be held on Monday, 23rd Day of
September, 2024 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 1002, Arunachal, 19 Barakhamba Road, New
Delhi - 110 001, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1

To consider and adopt the Audited financial statement of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Toappointadirectorin place of Shri Lalit Kumar (DIN 00059732), whoretires by rotation and, being eligible offers himself
forre-appointment.

Toratify appointment of M/s SudhirAgarwal & Associates (Formerly M/s SRD P & CO.), Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 509930C) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of thisAnnual
General Meeting to the conclusion of the nextAnnual General Meeting ofthe Company on such remuneration as shallbe
decided by the Board of Directors orany Committee thereof.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4.

Toreappoint Smt. NeetaGoel (DIN 07158388) as Non-Executive Director and inthis regard to consider and, if thoughtfit,
to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

"RESOLVED THAT pursuantto Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013
"(the Act)" read with the companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the other applicable
Rules made there-under(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactmentthereoffor the time being in force) read
with Schedule IV to the CompaniesAct, 2013, Smt Neeta Goel (DIN: 07158388) whose term of office expires at the
ensuing 40th Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a
memberunder Section 160 of the CompaniesAct, 2013, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be andis
hereby reappointed with effect from the conclusion of thisAnnual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 45th Annual
General Meeting as Non Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

Toreappoint Shri Rattan Singhania (DIN 00147685) as whole time Director and in this regard to consider and, if thought
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

"RESOLVED THAT pursuantto the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and any other applicable provisions, ifany, of
the CompaniesAct, 2013, the Companies (Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 read
with Schedule V of the said Act and Article 95 and 127 of the Articles of Association of the Company (including any
statutory modifications and re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and as per the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration committee and subject to the consent of the members of the company by way of a Special
Resolution atthe forthcoming Annual General Meeting, ShriRattan Singhania (DIN: 00147685) be andis hereby re-
appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from 1st April 2024
to31stMarch 2027, notliable toretire by rotation, on the termsas under :

(@ SALARY: UptoamaximumofRs. 10,00,000/- permonthincluding dearness allowance and all other allowances
withauthority to the Board to fix the salary within the above maximum amount fromtime totime. Initially with effect
from 1stApril 2024 salary to be Rs. 3,00,000 (Three Lakh) and Rs. 4,00,000/- (Four Lakh) with effect from 1st
October 2024 and thereafter annual or periodic increments to be decided by the Board within the above limit.

(b) PERQUSITES:

i) The company shall provide the Whole Time Director car with driver for official use as well as for self use or
where the car is owned by him then incur/reimburse the expenditure incurred by him, the value of this
perquisite to be determined as per Income Tax Rules.

ii) Reimbursement of expenditure actually incurred by him on his medical treatment or the treatment of any
member of his family to the extent exempt from tax under the Income TaxAct, 1961.

iif) Reimbursementof medical Insurance Premium paid by him on his health or on the health of any member of
his family under any scheme approved u/s 80 D ofthe Income TaxAct, 1961.
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iv)  Gratuity payable atarate notexceeding halfamonth's salary for each completed year of service provided
and itshall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration in any financial year if the
Company has no profitorits profits are inadequate in that financial year.

v)  Thecompany will provide one telephone and one internet connection at his residence for the business
purposes of the company or pay the expenses for the telephone and one internet connection presently
installed athis residence. He shallhowever reimburse the company for personal long distance telephone
calls. The company would reimburse or pay expenses of one mobile phone.

He shallnotbe entitled to any sitting fees for any Board / committee meeting.

The company would reimburse or pay all expensesincurred in the performance of his duties for the purposes of the
Company's business.

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, either party shall be entitled to determine his appointment by giving three
months' notice inwriting inthat behalfto the other party and on the expiry of the period of such notice, his appointment
shallstand terminated. The company shallalso be entitled to terminate his appointmenton giving himthree month's salary
as specified above.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT inthe event of any loss orinadequacy of profits in any financial year during histenure, the
Company shall pay Shri Rattan Singhania, the remuneration by way of salary and perquisites or any other allowances
as specified above and in accordance with the limits specified under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof, for the time being in force) or such other limits as may be prescribed by the
Governmentfromtimetotimeinthisregard, as minimum remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT ShriArun Kumar Garg - Director ofthe Company or Ms. Bhavna Seth - Company Secretary
of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised tofile the necessary returns with the Registrar of Companies,
NCT of Delhi & Haryana and to do all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
orexpedientto give effectto this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

Place : New Delhi RATTAN SINGHANIA
Dated: : 13-08-2024 Whole Time Director

DIN No. 00147685

Notes:
1

AMEMBERENTITLED TOATTENDAND VOTE AT THEMEETING ISENTITLED TOAPPOINT APROXY TO
ATTENDANDVOTEONPOLL ONHISBEHALF.APROXYNEEDNOTBEAMEMBER OF THECOMPANY.APROXY,
INORDER TOBE EFFECTIVE, MUST BERECEIVED AT THEREGISTERED OFFICE OF THECOMPANY NOTLESS
THAN48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THEMEETING.ABLANKPROXY FORMISENCLOSED.

APERSONCANACTASAPROXY ONBEHALFOF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY ANDHOLDINGINTHE
AGGREGATENOT MORETHANTENPERCENT OF THETOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THECOMPANY CARRING
VOTINGRIGHTS. AMEMBERHOLDING MORETHANTENPERCENT OF THET OTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON
SHALLNOTACTASAPROXY FORANY OTHERPERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

Members are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID or Folio Numbers, as may be applicable, for easy
identification of attendance atthe meeting.

Corporate Membersintending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send
acertified copy of Board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Pursuanttothe MCA Circulars, Notice of the 40th AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March 2024 including therein the Audited Financial Statements for the year 2023-2024, the afore-
mentioned documents are being sent by email to the Members whose emails are available. Members are, therefore,
requested to update their e-mail addresses with the Depository Participant, if the holding is in electronic mode or
intimate to the Company's Registrar at Skyline Financial Services Private Limited or the Company at their e-mail
address capital89@yahoo.com. Ifthe shares are held in physical form annual report and accounts would be sent
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by post. Copies of all such communication can be obtained in physical form from the company, free of cost, upon
requestby amember.

5. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Notice callingthe AGM and Annual Report have been
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.capfin.in. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of
the Stock Exchangei.e. MSEI Limited at www.msei.in and is also available on the website of CDSL (agency for
providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evotingindia.com

6. TheRegisterof Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed during the Book Closure
period, i.e., from 17th September, 2024 to 23rd September, 2024, both days inclusive in accordance with the
provisions of Section 91 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 for the purpose of the meeting.

7.  Asameasure of economy and a step toward green initiative, Members are requested to bring copy of Annual
Report/Notice to the meeting.

8.  Memberswho have notalready submitted their Permanent Account Number (PAN) & Email Id's, are requested to
submitthe same.

9.  Alldocumentsreferredinthe accompanying Notice and Statutory records etc. are open for inspection at the Office
of the Company during office hours on all working days, up to and inclusive of the date of the Annual General
Meeting.

10. Inaccordance with SEBI Circulars, the Company has sent outintimations to those members, holding sharesin
physicalform,whose PAN, KYC and/or Nomination details are not updated, requesting them to update the details.

11. TheRegisters maintained pursuantto provisions of Sections 170 and 189 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Rules
made thereunder will be made available forinspection by Members of the Company at the Meeting.

12. PROFILEOFDIRECTORS SEEKING REAPPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING 40th AGM
(Referltem NO. 2,4 &5 of the Notice for AGM)

Name of the Director |RATTAN SINGHANIA LALIT KUMAR NEETA GOEL
DIN 147685 00059732 07158388
Date of Birth 01-07-1949 12-01-1952 24-12-1974
Date of Re-appointment | 01-04-2024 23-09-2024 01-04-2024
Profile/ Expertise in A Fellow Member of The | A Fellow Member of The Graduate from Delhi
Specific functional Institute of Chartered | Institute of Chartered | University
Areas Accountants of India having | Accountants of India having
vast knowledge in financial | vast knowledge in financial
and company law matters. | anq company law matters.
More than two decades
experience in Capital
Markets.
Qualifications B.Com, FCA B.Com, FCA B.Com
List of directorship in
other Public Companies.
(As on 31st March 2024) |--NIL-- --NIL-- --NIL--
Shares held by the
Director 158394 Equity Shares 501 Equity Shares 3250 Equity Shares
Relationship with
other Director(s) NONE NONE NONE
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@

(ii)
(i)

(v)

13. SEBlhasrecently mandated furnishing of PermanentAccount Number (PAN), KYC details (i.e. Postal Address with pin
code, email address, mobile number, bank account details) and nomination details by holders of securities. Effective
from January 01, 2022, any service requests or complaints received from the Member will not be processed by RTA il
the aforesaid details/documents are provided to RTA. Members holding equity shares ofthe Company in physical form
are again requested to kindly get their equity shares converted into demat/ electronic form to getinherent benefits of
dematerialization and also considering that physical transfer of equity shares/issuance of equity shares in physical
form have been disallowed by SEBI.

14. Voting through electronic means:
Pursuantto Section 108 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013, and Rule 20 of the Companies (Managementand Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Companyis pleasedto provide its members the facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means.
The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

The voting period begins on 18th September, 2024 at 11.00A.M. and ends on 22nd September, 2024 at5.00 P.M..
Duringthis period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form orin dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date (record date) of 16th September 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereatfter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.
Pursuantto SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020 , under Regulation 44 of
Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders'
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/
retail shareholdersis atanegligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India.
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the
shareholders.

Inordertoincrease the efficiency of the voting process, pursuantto a public consultation, ithas been decided to
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their
demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants . Demataccount holders would be
able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL  e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.

Interms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December9,2020  one-Votingfacility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities indemat mode are allowed to vote
throughtheir demataccountmaintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demataccountsin order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1) Userswho have opted for CDSL Easi/Easiestfacility, canlogin through their existing
holding securities in userid and password. Option willbe made available to reach e-Voting page withoutany
Demat mode with CDSL further authentication. The usersto loginto Easi/ Easiest are requested to visit cdsl

website www.cdslindia.com and click on loginicon & New System Myeasi Tab.

2)  Aftersuccessfulloginthe Easi/Easiestuser will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. Onclicking the evoting option, the user willbe able to see e-Voting page of the
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided
toaccessthe system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visitthe e-
Voting service providers' website directly.
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3)

4)

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
clickonregistration option.

Alternatively, the user candirectly access e-Voting page by providing DematAccount
Numberand PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www .cdslindia.com home
page. The systemwill authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded inthe DematAccount. After successful authentication, userwillbe
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to
directly accessthe system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL

1)

2)

3)

Ifyou are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on amobile. Once the home
page of e-Servicesis launched, click onthe "Beneficial Owner"icon under"Login"
whichis available under'IDeAS' section. Anew screen will open. You will have to
enteryour User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you willbe able
to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Ifthe useris not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select"Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visitthe e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL.:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/either ona Personal Computer oron amobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is
available under'Shareholder/Member' section. Anew screenwill open. You will have
toenteryourUser ID (i.e. your sixteen digitdemat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in demat
mode) login through their
Depository Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After
Successfullogin, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related
to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technicalissuein login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
in Dematmode with CDSL sending arequestat helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contactattoll free

no.18002109911

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technicalissueinlogin can contact NSDL helpdesk by
inDematmodewithNSDL sendingarequestatevoting@nsdl.co.inorcallat: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -

24997000

6)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)
(ix)

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual
holding in Demat form.

1) Theshareholders shouldlog onto the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Clickon"Shareholders"module.
3) NowenteryourUserID
a. For CDSL.: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. ForNSDL.: 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digits Client D,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4) Nextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) Ifyou are holding sharesin demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

Ifyou are afirst-time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form

PAN Enteryour 10digitalpha-numeric *PANissued by Income Tax Department (applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

L Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participantare
requested to use the sequence number sentby Company/RTAor contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Bank_ account or in the company records in order to login.

Details OR . Ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member
Date Of Birth

(DOB) id/folionumberinthe Dividend Bank details field as mentioned ininstruction (3).

After entering these details appropriately, clickon"SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained
inthis Notice.

Clickonthe EVSN (240801005) forthe relevant Capital Finvest Limited on which you choose to vote.

[¢]
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()
(i)
(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

1

Onthevoting page, you willsee "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION"and againstthe same the option "YES/NO" for voting.
Selectthe option YES or NO asdesired. The option YES implies that you assentto the Resolution and option NO implies
thatyou dissentto the Resolution.

Clickonthe"RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK"ifyouwish to viewthe entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, clickon "SUBMIT". Aconfirmation box will be displayed. Ifyou
wishto confirmyour vote, clickon"OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you"CONFIRM"your vote onthe resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can alsotake a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option onthe Voting page.

Ifademataccountholder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Thereis also anoptional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for
verification.

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -For Remote Voting only.

. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required tolog on to
www.evotingindia.com and registerthemselvesinthe "Corporates" module.

. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

. Afterreceiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance Userwould be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

. Thelistofaccountslinked inthe login willbe mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.

. Itis Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued infavour ofthe Custodian, ifany, should be uploadedin PDF formatin the system for the scrutinizer to verify
thesame.

. Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority

letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote,
tothe Scrutinizer and to the Company atthe email address viz; capital89@yahoo.com, ifthey have voted from
individual tab & notuploaded same inthe CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILENO. ARENOTREGISTEREDWITHTHE COMPANY /
DEPOSITORIES.

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (frontand back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy
of Aadhar Card) by emailto Company/RTAemailid.

For Dematshareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP).

For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your emailid & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(DP)whichis mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contactattoll free no. 180021 09911

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, AWing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M JoshiMarg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai-400013 or send an emailto helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
orcallattollfree no. 18002109911

In case of members receiving the physical copy:
COMMONINSTRUCTIONS

E-voting shall not be allowed beyond 5.00 p.m. on 22nd September, 2024. During e-voting period, Members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form orin dematerialized form, as on 16th September, 2024 may cast their
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Vi.

15.

vote electronically. Once the vote onaresolution is cast by the members, the members shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid up equity capital ofthe Company as on
the cut-off date of 16th September, 2024.

Ms. Richa Dhamija (Membership no. 9776) Company Secretary, has been appointed as a scrutinizerto scrutinize the e-
voting processin afairand transparentmanner.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 2 working days from the conclusion of e-voting period unblock the
votesin presence of atleast two withesses notin the employment of the Company and make a scrutinizers report ofthe
votes castinfavour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

In case of Memberswho are entitled to vote but have not exercised their right to vote by electronic means, the Chairman
may offer an opportunity to such members to vote at the meeting for all business specified in the accompanying notice.
Forabundant clarity, please note thatthe Members who have exercised their right to vote by electronic means shall not
vote atthe meeting. The voting right of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share
capital ofthe Company. IfaMember casts votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot
shallbetreated asinvalid.

Theresults shallbe declared on or afterthe AGM of the Company. The resolution willbe deemedto be passed ontheAGM
date subjectto receipt of the requisite Number of votes in favour of the resolutions. The results declared along with the
scrutinizers report shall be placed on the Company's Notice Board and on the website of CDSL within 2 days of passing
ofresolutions atthe AGM ofthe Company and communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

Members desirous of asking any questions atthe Annual General Meeting are requested to send intheir questions soas
toreachthe Company atleast 10 days before the Annual General Meeting, so that the same can be suitably replied.

By order of the Board of Directors
For CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED
RATTAN SINGHANIA

Place : New Delhi Whole Time Director
Dated: : 13-08-2024 DIN No0.00147685
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ltem No. 4 : REAPPOINTMENT OF NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

As per the provisions of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Company
Should have at least one Woman Director on the Board of the Company. Accordingly, pursuant to the Articles of
Assaociation of the Company and Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had appointed Smt. Neeta
Goel (DIN 07158388) as a Non-Executive Director of the Company whose term of office expires at the ensuing 40th Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors after consideration has recommended to reappoint Smt Neeta Goel (DIN: 07158388) as Non-
Executive Director within the meaning of Section 149 and 152 (including Section 149(10) of the new Companies Act, 2013
read with the Schedule 1V attached thereto and Rules made under, with effect from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the 45th Annual General Meeting subject to retirement by rotation.

The Company has received a notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, from a
member along with a deposit of Rs. 1,00,000/- proposing the candidature of Smt. Neeta Goel for the office of Director, to
be reappointed as such under the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. The notice received under section
160(2) is available for inspection during normal business hours on any working day of the Company.

The Company has received from Smt. Neeta Goel consent in writing to act as a director in From DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8
of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (i) intimation in Form Dir-8 in terms of Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of
Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, and (iii) a declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as
provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Smt. Neeta Goel (DIN 07158388), proposed to be reappointed, fulfils the
conditions specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and she is independent of the Management. The Board
considers that her association would be immense benefit to the Comapny and it is desirable to continue to avail her
services as a Director.

The said Director is not related to any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (including relatives of Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel) of the Company in terms of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (including relatives of directors or Key Managerial
Personnel) other than the respective Non-Executive Director herself is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
In this resolution.

The Board recommends the resolutions set forth in Item No 4 for the approval of the members.
Item No. 5:

The Remuneration committee and the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 13th February 2024,
subject to the approval of the Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, recommended to reappoint Shri Rattan
Singhania as a Whole Time Director of the Company for a further period of three years commencing from 1st April 2024 to
31st March 2027 on terms and conditions, as set outin the Notice of this Annual General Meeting.

Shri Rattan Singhania is to be re-appointed for a further period of 3 (three) years i.e. for a further period of three years
commencing from 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2027 as Whole Time Director of the Company and he shall devote whole of
his time and attention to his services as Whole Time Director of the Company and shall under the superintendence, control
and direction of the Board, perform duties and exercise the powers as may be entrusted to or confer upon by the Board.
His brief resume has been given in para 12 of Notes of Annual General Meeting Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No 5 for the approval of the members.

Bl
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (iv) OF SECOND PROVISOT O SUBPARAGRAPHOF SECTION11OFPARTIIOF
SCHEDULEVTOTHE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

| General Information

Nature of Industry Trading, Investment s & NBFC activities

Date of expected date of commencementof commercial 20.09.1983

production

Financial Performance based ongivenindicators inLakhs
Financial Parameters 2023-24 | 2022-23 | 2021-22
Revenuefromoperations| 50.71 83.34 90.78
ProfitAfter Tax (0.48) 33.06| 39.92
Amountof Dividend Paid - - -
Rate of Dividend - - -

Foreigninvestments or collaborations, if any. Noforeign Investments or Collaborations have beenmade

Il | Information about the appointee:

Background details Furnishedin Para 12 of Notes of Annual General Meeting

Pastremuneration Rs. 2,00,000/-

Recognition orawards -

Job profile and his suitability As Whole Time Director of the company he will be

responsible forthe management of the company, subject
tothe superintendence, guidance and control ofthe Board
of Directors of the Company. Taking into account his
previous experience, educational background, knowledge
aboutthe industry and the nature and size of operations of
the Company, heis afitand proper personto be appointed
asthe Whole Time Director ofthe Company.

Remuneration proposed Furnishedinthe Resolution

Comparative remuneration profile with respect to The proposed remunerationis reasonable with respectto
industry, size of the company, profile of the position the industry, size of the Company and job profile of the
and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details proposed appointee.

would be with respectto the country of his origin)

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Shri Rattan Singhania is the Founder Promoter of the

company, or relationship with the managerial personnel, Company. No relationship with the Managerial Personnel
ifany.
IIl | Other information : -
Reasons of loss orinadequate profits Nature of Business
Stepstaken or proposed to be taken forimprovement Depends on Marketconditions

Expected increase in productivity and profits in Unpredictable due to nature of business
measurableterms

IV | Disclosures:

The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the
Board of Director's Reportunderthe heading "Corporate
Governance", if any, attached to the financial
statement:-
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(i) all elements of remuneration package such as
salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension,
etc., of allthe directors;

No Remunerationto any other director

hasbeenissuedatadiscountaswellasthe period
overwhichaccrued and overwhichexcercisable.

(i) details offixed componentand performance linked Fixed Remunerationonly
incentives along with the performance criteria;

(i) service contracts, notice period, severance fees: As PerResolution

(iv) stock optiondetails, ifany, and whether the same -NIL-
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of CAPIT AL FINVEST LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 40th Annual Report together with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31stMarch, 2024.

1

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘the Act' read with Companies Accounts) Rules 2014. The
financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 as well as comparative figures for the year ended 31st
March 2024 are IndAs compliant.

The financial highlights of your company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 are summarized as follows:

PARTICULARS (Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs.in Lakhs)
2023-24 2022-23
Income 50.71 83.34
Expenses 49.42 46.65
Profit (before financial charges, depreciation and tax) 1.29 36.69
Net Finance Expense / (Income) NIL NIL
Depreciation and amortization Expenses .06 .62
Profit before tax 1.23 36.06
Tax Expense / For earlier years 1.67 3.00
Net Profit for the year -0.48 33.06

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE -OUTLOOK AND STATEOFAFFAIRS

During the year under review, your company has ensured business continuity. The company was engagedin investment
activities during the year under review, hence the requirement of segment-wise reporting is consideredirrelevant. The
totalloss forthe financial year under review was 0.48 lakhs as against profit of 33.06 lakhs for the previous financial
yearwhichislowerin comparisonwith that of previous year. The profitbefore taxis 1.23 lakhs as against profit of 36.06
lakhs of lastyear. Your company mainly operates in Capital Markets by way of arbitrage, trading and investment
activities on its own account. The mainstay of your company's operations continued to be investments in various
companies under which dividends flows into the company coupled with appreciation in capital. The year was full of
volatility and uncertainties but were on higher trajectory during the year. The company is always on the lookout for
alternative avenues for business opportunities. The company is managing various risks by maintaining a conservative
financial profile and by following prudent business and risk management practices. We are careful with our portfolio
quality and we monitor indicators minutely. Company has significant quoted investments which are exposed tofluctuations
instock prices, which largely depends upon financial and capital markets. Medium term growth prospects look uncertain
in view of the global slowdown. The redeeming feature is that the value of inventories has increased which will be
utilized in coming years. Inflation has emerged as a global challenge owing to the surge in energy prices, non-food
commodities, input prices disruptions of global supply chains and rising freight costs etc. Continued geopolitical
tensions and extreme weather events present downside risks to the outlook. Investments here should always be along
termstory. The next5 years should give good returns as the managementis optimistic about the future outlook of the
company.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors do notrecommend any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2024 due toloss.
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10.

1.

12.

TRANSFERTORESERVES

There was no transfer to any reserve as the year has ended into aloss.

CHANGEINTHENATUREOFBUSINESS

Therewas no change inthe nature of the business of the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company did not have any Subsidiary Company or any joint ventures during the year under review.
CONSERVATIONOFENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION ANDFOREIGNEXCHANGE EARNINGS ANDOUTGO

Consideringits nature of activities, the following disclosures are made as per the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

a. The Company has no activities relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption.
b. There are noforeign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review.
DEPOSITFROMPUBLIC

The Company has notaccepted any deposit from public and as such, noamount on account of principal orintereston
deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

PARTICULARS OFLOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS

Your company has not made any loan or given any guarantees or made any investment under section 186 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuanttothe requirement of Section 134(5) ofthe Actand based onthe representations received fromthe management,
the directors hereby confirmthat:

a. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2023-2024 the applicable accounting standards
have beenfollowed and there are no material departures;

b. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
thatare reasonable and prudent so asto give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company atthe end
ofthe financial year and of the profit of the Company for the financial year;

c. they have taken Proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

d. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating properly.

f. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CHANGEINSHARE CAPITAL DURING THEFINANCIAL YEAR2023-24
Therewas no changeinthe Share Capital of the company.
STATUTORYAUDITORS

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, M/s SRDP & Co., Chartered
Accountants (FRN 509930C) were appointed as Auditors of the Company, for aterm of 5(five) consecutive years at
the Annual General Meeting held on 26-09-2022. Their Continuation of appointmentis placed for ratification at the
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a certificate from the above Auditors to the effect thatif their
appointmentis ratified, itwould be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.
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20.

21.

AUDITREPORT

The Statutory Auditors have submitted the Audit Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the accounting
yearended 31stMarch 2024. The observations and comments given by Auditors intheir Reportread together with the
Notestothe Accounts are generalin nature and are self explanatory except with one qualification thatthe accounting
software used by the company does not have afeature of recording audit trails for the year.

The board considered this and noted that ours is a smallinvestment company having no customer interface and we
solely transact on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange on our own account, which transactions
cannot be edited at all. We were on lookout to find cost effective software considering our limited resources. The
softwares then available were very expensive meant for big companies. Butglad to state thatduring the currentyear
the company has installed accounting software that has audit trail.

REPORTINGOFFRAUDSBYAUDITORS

During the year under review, Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor have notreported any instances of frauds committed
inthe Company by its officers or Employees to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act, details of which
needsto be mentionedinthis Report.

COSTAUDITORS

Inview of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,CostAuditis not applicable to your company.
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuantto provisions of Section 204 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 and The Companies (Appointmentand Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has appointed Richa Dhamija & Company, a Company Secretaryin
practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024. The Secretarial Audit
Report, as placed by the Auditors is annexed with this Report as Annexure -I.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'SREPORT

There are nodisqualifications or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Auditors Report. The company has complied with
the applicable Secretarial Standards.

INTERNALAUDITORS

The Company has appointed M/s SPDG & Associates Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of the Company fora
period of Five yearstill 31st March 2028. Their Reports were placed before the Audit Committee of the Company fromtime
totime.

ANNUALRETURN

Pursuantto Section 92(3) of the Actand the Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time the Annual Return
ofthe Company in prescribed Formis available on the website of the Company i.e. www.capfin.in

DIRECTORS

Allthe Directors have varied experience and specialized knowledge in various areas of relevance tothe Company. The
Board consists of directors appointed as per the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

ShriLalit Kumar, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

Smt. Neeta Goel isto be reappointed as a Non Executive Director for aterm of five years and Shri Rattan Singhaniais
reappointed as a Whole time Director for anotherterm of three years.

The Board recommends the same for your approval.

NUMBEROFMEETINGSOFTHEBOARD

Four meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held during the year.

The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are as follows:

S.NO. Name of the Director Board Meetings
No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
1. Shri Rattan Singhania 4 4
2. Shri Arun Kumar Garg 4 4
3. Shri Lalit Kumar 4 4
4. Smt. Neeta Goel 4 4

Meetings were held on 30-05-2023, 10-08-2023, 09-11-2023 and 13-02-2024.
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25.

26.

27.
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29.

30.

TRANSACTIONSWITHRELA TEDPARTIES

The Company has notenteredinto any contract or arrangement or transaction of material nature as specified u/s 188 (1)
of the Act or any other rules and regulations with any of the related party except the remuneration paid to its Key
Managerial Personnel of which disclosures has been giveninthe notes to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ANDMATERIAL ORDERSPASSEDBY THEREGULATORSORCOURTS

There are no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts or Tribunals whichwould impactthe going
concern status of the Company andits future operations.

RISKMANAGEMENT

The Risk Managementis overseen by the Audit Committee and Board of the Company on a continuous basis. The
Company hasin place amechanismto inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimisation procedures and
periodical reviewto ensure thatrisk is controlled by means of a properly defined framework. We are careful with our
portfolio quality and we monitor indicators minutely. Inthe Board's view, there are no material risks, which may threaten
the existence ofthe Company.

DECLARATIONOFINDEPENDENTDIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the requirements as stipulated
in Section 149(6) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 so asto qualify themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under
the provisions ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 and the relevantrules.

CORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT

The company is having paid up equity share capital notexceeding rupees ten crore and networth notexceeding rupees
twenty-five crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year, hence the provisions of regulation 15 of SEBI(LODR)
Regulation, 2015 relating to the compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as specified inregulations 17,
17A,18,19,20,21,22,23,24,24A 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) to sub-regulaton (2) of regulation 46 and para
C,DandE of Schedule V, do notapply to the company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Provisions of Section 135 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 are not applicable tothe company.
MATERIAL CHANGE AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITIONOF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company., which had
occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of
thisAnnual Report.

BOARDEVALUATION

Pursuantto the provisions of the Actand the Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed by SEBlunder Clause
49 ofthe Equity Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors has carried outan annual evaluation of its performance, and
that ofits Committees and Individual Directors.

The performance of the Board, Wholetime director and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs
fromthe directors. The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs fromthe Committee
Members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual director.

The Criteriafor performance evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board composition and structure, effectiveness
of Board processes, information and functioning transparency and disclosures etc.

INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMAND THEIRADEQUACY

The company has in place adequate internal financial control and procedures commensurate with its size, extentand
nature of its activities alongwith periodical review of operational effectiveness. All the transactions are properly
authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards
for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. This ensures orderly and efficient
conductofits business and policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention of errors, accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.
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LISTING

The Equity shares of your company are listed at Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company has paid
listing fees to the said Stock Exchange for the financial year 2023-2024.

VIGILMECHANISM

In pursuantto the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015, a Vigil
Mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy has been established.

AUDITCOMMITTEE

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of Non executive independent directors viz. ShriArun
Kumar Garg, Smt. Neeta Goeland Shri Lalit Kumar. There was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which was not
accepted by the board. Four meetings were held during the year attended by the aforesaid directors asunder :

S.NO.

Name of the Director

No. of Meetings held

No.of Meetings attended

1. Shri Arun Kumar Garg 4 4
2. Shri Lalit Kumar 4 4
3 Smt. Neeta Goel 4 4

Meetings were held on 30-05-2023, 10-08-2023, 09-11-2023 and 13-02-2024.

34.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three non-executive Independent
directors viz. Shri Arun Kumar Garg, Smt. Neeta Goel and Shri Lalit Kumar. Two meetings were held during the year

attended by the aforesaid directors as under :

S.NO. Name of the Director No. of Meetings held No.of Meetings attended
1 Shri Arun Kumar Garg 2 2
2. Shri Lalit Kumar 2 2
3. Smt. Neeta Goel 2 2

35.

36.

37.

38.

Meetings was held on 25-04-2023 and 13-02-2024.
POLICY ONDIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company has in place a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees,
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the same is annexed hereto as Annexure Il1.

REMUNERATION RATIO OF THE DIRECTORS

The information required pursuant to Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed at Annexure-1V.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

Disclosures as required under Rules 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

0] statement showing the details ofthe top 10 employeesinterms of remuneration drawnis attached asAnnexure 'V';

(i)  statementshowingthe details of employees employed throughoutthe financial yearandisinreceipt ofremuneration
ofRs. 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore and Two Lacs only) or more, or employed for a part of the yearandin
receiptofRs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight Lacs and Fifty Thousand only) or more amonth - NotApplicable as none
ofthe employee received in excess of the aforesaid limits.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

As at March 31, 2024 - 89.42% of equity shares of the Company have been dematerialised by shareholders through
National Securities Depository Limited & Central Depository Services Limited. The shareholders, who have not gone
for dematerialization of the shares till date, are requested to opt for dematerialization of the shares at the earliest.
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40.
41.
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43.

Consequent to SEBI having amended Regulation 40 of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 with respect to mandatory
dematerialization for transfer of securities, members are advised to get their physical certificates dematerialised.
Physical certificates which are lodged for transfer will be mandatorily dematerialized.

The Company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., as Registrar for Share Transfer and Electronic
connectivity. Accordingly all the shareholders, Investors, Members of the Stock Exchanges, Depository Participants
and all other concerned are requested to send all communication in respect of share transfer, demat / remat, change
of address etc. to our Registrar at below mentioned address :

M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

(Unit: Capital Finvest Limited)

D-153A, IstFloor,

OkhlaIndustrial AreaPhase-|,

New Delhi-110020

TelephoneNo.: (011) 40450193-197

FaxNo.:(011) 26812682

PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP OR TRANSACTIONS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.

No Application has ever been made nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code.
The company has never taken any loan either from any bank or financial institution.

The provisions relating to CSR activities are not applicable to your company.

Disclosure about the accounting software having Audit Trail has been explained in Para 13 hereinabove.
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The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to business associates for their support and contribution during the
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By Order of the Board of Directors

For CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED
RATTAN SINGHANIA

Whole Time Director
DIN : 00147685
CHAIRPERSON

C-704, 3rd Floor

New Friends Colony
New Delhi-1 10025

PLACE : NEW DELHI
DATED : 13-08-2024
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Richa Dhamija and Company E-mail id : hricha.dhamija@gmail.com
Companies Secretaries Address : C-553, Sector-19, Noida - 201301
Mobile No. 9911792770
FormNo. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDITREPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31stMarch, 2024

[Pursuanttosection 204(1)ofthe Companies Act,2013and Rule No.9 ofthe Companies (Appointmentand
RemunerationPersonnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CAPITAL FINVESTLIMITED

1002 ARUNACHAL19BARAKHAMBAROAD,
NEWDELHI110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Capital FinvestLimited (hereinafter called "the Comp any" ). Secretarial Auditwas conductedin
amanner that provided us areasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
ouropinionthereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company, the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the
Management, we hereby reportthatin our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year
ended onMarch 31,2024 , generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also thatthe Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanismin place to the extent, in the manner and subjectto the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the applicable provisions of:

(i) TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Securities Contract (Regulation)Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investmentand External Commercial Borrowings; (notapplicable during audit period)(not
applicable during audit period)

(v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed underthe Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 (‘'SEBI
Act’):
(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;(notapplicable during audit period)
(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009
and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018 and amendments fromtime to time; (notapplicable during audit period)

(d)  The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Notapplicable
tothe Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)
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(f)  The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Registrarstoan Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(g) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Notapplicable
tothe Company during the audit period) and

(h)  The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018, (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general
meetings.

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subjectto the following:

Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors and there is no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the
year.Mrs Bhavna Seth acts as a Compliance officer ofthe Company.

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sentatleast seven days in advance with the proper compliances of the provisions of CompaniesAct, 2013.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

We furtherreportthatthere are adequate systems and processes inthe company commensurate with the size and operations
ofthe company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. And Inrespect of
otherlaws specifically applicable to the Company, | have relied oninformation/records produced by the Company during the
course of my auditand the reporting is limited to that extent.

We further reportthat during the audit period, there were no instances of:

Public/Right/preferential/debentures/sweat equity, etc.
Redemption/buy-back of securities

Any approval taken from members in pursuance to section 180 of the CompaniesAct, 2013
Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction, etc.

Foreigntechnical collaborations

This Reportisto be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms anintegral part of thisreport.

For Richa Dhamija & Company
(Practising Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
Richa Dhamija
(Proprietor)
FCS 9776
COP 12099

Date: 17.05.2024 UDIN: FO09776F000392136
Place: Noida
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To,

The Members,

CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

1002 Arunachal 19 Barakhamba Road,
New Delhi 1 10001

1

ANNEXURE - |

Sub: Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended March, 2024 of even Date is to be read with this letter

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion onthese secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed
provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

We have verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance ofthe provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standardsisthe responsibility
of management. Our examinationwas limited to the verification of procedures ontest basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability ofthe company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the managementhas conducted the affairs of the company.

For Richa Dhamija & Company
(Practising Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
Richa Dhamija
(Proprietor)
FCS 9776
COP 12099

Date: 17.05.2024 UDIN: FO09776F000392136
Place: Noida
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ANNEXURE- Il
REMUNERATION POLICY
Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

Thisremuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and this remuneration policy,
the provisions of law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the applicable law.

This policy has been framed keeping in view the nature of its activities, size, resources and its capacity to pay.
Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

Remuneration for Independent Directors

» IndependentDirectors are to be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which
they may be members). Quantum of sitting fees may be subjectto review on a periodic basis, as required. Inadditionto
the sitting fees, they are also eligible for out of pocket expenses incurred for attending the Board Meetings and
Committees of the Board.

»  Overallremuneration (sitting fees) should be fairand reasonable keeping in view the nature and size of the company's
activities.

Remuneration for Managing Director (MD) / Whole Time Director / KMP/ Rest of the employees

The extent of overallremuneration should be sufficientto engage and retain suitable individuals. Hence remuneration should
be basedon:

»  Qualification, experience and suitability to the company,
> Marketcompetitiveness,

»  Drivenbytherole played by the individual,

>

Reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector / industry / company's operations and the company's
capacity to pay.

\4

The remuneration mix forthe MD/ EDs or Wholetime Director is as per the terms approved by the Board and Members.
In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the Members.

»  Basic/fixed salaryis provided to allemployees as per terms agreed with them.

» Inadditiontothe basic/fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and
benefitswhere possible like leave encashment, bonus, reimbursement etc. and annual increments.

» Inadditiontothefixed salary and perquisites as provided, the company may provide MD/EDs or Wholetime director such
remuneration, calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial year, as may be
determined by the Board, subjectto the overall ceiling stipulated in Section 197 of the Act.

Policy implementation

The NRCisresponsible forrecommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board isresponsible for approving and
overseeingimplementation of the remuneration policy.
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ANNEXURE - IV

DETAILS OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013
READ WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES
2014

i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year;

Name of the Director Ratio to Median Remuneration

Rattan Singhania - Wholetime Director 8.76

ii)  Thepercent ageincreaseinremuneration ofeach Director , Chief Financial Officer , Chief Executive Officer ,
Company Secret ary or Manager , if any, in the financial year,

The percentage increase (a) Whole Time Director NIL%
(b) Chief Financial Officer 8.70%
(c) Company Secretary NIL

iii)  The percent age increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
The percentage increase inthe medianremunerationwas 274 %.

iv)  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31st March 2024.
The number of permanentemployees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March 2024 was Five.

v)  The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company
performance;

Theincreaseinremunerationisinthe line with the markettrends and represents Nominal annualincrements onlyand has
no correlation with company's performance.

vi)  Comparision of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the

company;
Particulars Amount in Rs.
Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during financial year 2023-2024 33,40,000/-
Revenue from Operations 50,71,000/-
Remuneration (as% of revenue) 65.86 %
Remuneration (as% of PBT)* 2715.48 %

vii) Variations in the market capit alization of the Comp any, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the
current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market
guotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with
the last public offerin case of listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the variation in the net
worth of the Company as at the close of the current financial year and previous financial year;

Earlier shares ofthe company were listed at the Delhi Stock Exchange which was lying closed for over adecade and
as such there was no trading in the shares of the company. Shares of the company were listed at the Metropolitan
Exchange of Indiaonly on 12-12-2014 and there has been notrading in the shares of the Company during the financial
yearended 31stMarch 2024, therefore, there is noinformations or rates to be givenin this respect.

viii) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial Remuneration
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ix)

X)

Xi)

xii)

The average percentileincrease made in Salaries of employees other than managerial personnelin 2023-2024 was
around 9% whereas percentile increase inthe managerial remuneration for the year was around 28 % for the same

financial year.

Comparison of each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the

Company

Particulars Mr. Rattan Singhania Ms. Alka Sharma Ms. Bhavna Seth
Remeneration 24,00,000/- 7,00,000/- 2,40,000/-
Revenue 50,71,000/- 50,71,000/- 50,71,000/-
Remuneration

(as% of revenue) 47.33% 13.80% 4.73%
Profit before tax (PBT) 1,23,000/- 1,23,000/- 1,23,000/-
Remuneration

(as% of PBT)* 1951.22 % 569.10% 195.12 %

the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors;

There are novariable components of salary paid in 2023-2024 linked with the performance of the Company for the said
managerial personnel.

the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors
but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year;

Thereis no such employee being paid higher than the highest paid director.
Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024 is as per the
Remuneration Policy ofthe Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

1

To the Members of CAPIT AL FINVEST LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

A.  Wehave audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Capital FinvestLimited (“the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
onthatdate, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred toas"the Standalone Financial Statements").

B. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statementsgive the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")in the
manner so required and give atrue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 ofthe Actread with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended,
("IndAS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
endedonthatdate

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statementsin accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described inthe Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statementssection of our report. We are independent of the
Company inaccordance with the Code of Ethicsissued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India(ICAl)together
with the independence requirements that are relevantto our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Actand the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe thatthe audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statementsof the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion onthese matters. We have determined thatthere is no mattersto be describe inkey audit matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

A.  TheCompany's Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the other information. The otherinformation
comprises the information included inthe Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Reportincluding
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information to the extent applicable, but does notinclude the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's
reportthereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial statementsdoes not cover the otherinformation and we
do notexpress any form of assurance conclusionthereon.

B. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informationand,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiallyinconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statementsor our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materiallymisstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement ofthis other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportinthisregard.

Management's Responsibility for theStandalone Financial Statements

A.  TheCompany's Board of Directorsis responsible for the matters statedin section 134(5) ofthe Actwith respect
to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changesin equity and cash flows ofthe Company
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
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also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, thatwere
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give atrue and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, managementis responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattersrelated to going concernand using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has norealistic alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

6.  Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
A.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statementsas a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta material misstatementwhenitexists. Misstatements can
arise fromfraud or errorand are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expectedtoinfluence the economic decisionsofuserstaken on the basis ofthese Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughoutthe audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financialstatements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatementresulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internalcontrol.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the auditinorder to designaudit
proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
systemin place and the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

i) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
andrelated disclosures made bymanagement.

iv)  Conclude onthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based ontheauditevidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that maycast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as agoing concern. Ifwe conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosuresinthe Standalone Financial Statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may causethe Company to cease to continue as agoingconcern.

V) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and eventsinamannerthatachieves fairpresentation.

Materiality isthe magnitude of misstatementsin the Standalone Financial Statements that, individuallyorin aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of areasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial
Statementsmay be influenced. We consider quantitative materialityand qualitativefactorsin (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatementsinthe Standalone Financial Statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significantauditfindings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thatwe
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirementsregarding independence, and to communicate with themall relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Fromthe matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the
key auditmatters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure aboutthe matter orwhen, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thatamatter should notbe
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

A.

B.

We have soughtand obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit

Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as itappears
from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profitand Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changesin Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are inagreementwith the relevant
books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements complywith the IndAS specified under Section
133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directorsis disqualified as on March 31, 2024from being appointed as a
directorinterms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

Withrespecttothe adequacy ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company andthe
operating effectiveness of such controls, referto our separate Reportin "Annexure A". Our reportexpresses
anunmodified opinion onthe adequacy and operating effectiveness of theCompany'sinternal financial controls
over financial reporting.

With respecttothe other mattersto be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) ofthe Act, asamended:

Inour opinion andto the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us, the remuneration
paid by the Companytoits directors during the yearis in accordance with the provisions of section 197ofthe Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, asamended in our opinion andto the bestof our informationand
accordingto the explanations givento us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impactiits financial position.

ii) The Company did nothave any long-term contractsincluding derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

i)  Therewere noamountswhich were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv)  Basedonourexamination, whichincludestest checks, the company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended on March 31,2024 which does nothave a
feature of recording audittrails (editlog) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all
relevanttransactionrecorded in the software.
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As provisoto Rule 3(1) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting
under Rule 11(g) ofthe Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trails as perthe
statutory requirement for record retentionis notapplicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Governmentinterms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3and 4 of the
Ordertothe extentapplicable.

For :Sudhir Agarwal & Associates
(Formerly M/sSRD P & CO.)
Chartered Accountants

FRNo. 509930C

CA Apoorv Agarwal Dated : 28th May 2024
(Partner) Place: New Delhi
M. No. 571062

UDIN : 24571062BKHIXQ6165
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Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors Report
Pursuant to Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act’)

We have audited the internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED ("the Company")as
atMarch 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the yearended on
thatdate.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Managementis responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based onthe internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated inthe Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (:ICAI"). These responsibilitiesinclude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence tothe Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
underthe CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'sinternal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the 'Guidance Note") and the Standards onAuditing, issued by the ICAl and deemedto be prescribed under Section
143(10) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013, to the extentapplicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance aboutwhether adequate internalfinancial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend onthe auditors'judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe thatthe auditevidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis of our audit opinion on the
Company'sinternalfinancial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposesin accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertainto the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only inaccordance with authorizations of the
Managementand directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because ofthe inherentlimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper managementoverride of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and notbe detected. Also,
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projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subjectto the risk
thatthe internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changesin conditions, orthatthe
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate interenal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such interenal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024,
based onthe internal control over financial reporting criteria establised by the Company considering the essential components

ofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For :Sudhir Agarwal & Associates
(Formerly M/sSRD P & CO.)
Chartered Accountants

FRNo. 509930C

CA Apoorv Agarwal Dated : 28th May 2024
(Partner) Place: New Delhi
M. No. 571062

UDIN : 24571062BKHIXQ6165
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements'

section of our report to the Members of Capital Finvest Limited of even date)
Pursuant to Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020

@

(i)

(ii)

(v)

)

(vi)

Tothe best of ourinformation and according to the explanations provided to us by the company and the books of accounts and
records examined by usinthe normal course of Audit, we state that:

(@) TheCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets on the basis of available information.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals having regardto the size of the company and nature of its business. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) Asexplainedtous,thereis noimmovable property held by the company.
(d)  The Company has notrevalued any ofits Property, plantand Equipments and Intangible assets during the year.

(e) Noproceedings have beeninitiated during the year or are pending againstthe company as at March 31st, 2024
for holding any benami property underthe Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (asamended in2016) and
rulesmade thereunder.

(@) Asexplainedtous,the company holdsinventory of shares and those are in dematform soitis not possible to
physically verifythe inventory by the management.

(b)  The Company has notbeen sanctioned working capital limitsinexcess of Rs. 5 crores, inaggregate, atany points
oftime during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of currentassets and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other
parties covered inthe register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) to
(C) ofthe Order are applicable to the Company.

1 The Terms and conditions of the grant of such loan are prima facie not prejudicial to the company's interest.

2. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments and
receiptsareregular.

3. Inrespect of the loans granted by the company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the
Balance sheetdate.

4, Noloan granted by the company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

5. The Company has notgranted any loans or advancesinthe nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information ad explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and
security.

The company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73to 76 or any other relevant provisions ofthe Actand
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable. Hence, reporting under 3(v) of the orderis notapplicable.

Asinformed to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, inrespect of the activities carried on by the company.
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(vii)

(viii)

(x)

()

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(@) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, and records, the Company has been generally regularin depositing undisputed statutory duesincluding
provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations givento us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
ofthe above wereinarrears as atMarch 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on whenthey
become payable.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income duringthe yearinthe taxassessments underthe Income TaxAct. 1961.

a. The Company has nottaken any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year. hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(a) ofthe Orderis notapplicable.

b. The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
governmentauthority.

c. The company has nottaken any long-term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans atthe
beginning ofthe yearand hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c") of the Orderis not applicable.

d. Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the company, no funds were raised for shortterm by the
company. Hence reporting under this clause is notapplicable.

e. Onanoverallexamination of the financial statements of the company, the Company has nottaken any funds from
the entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

f. The company has notraised any loans during the year and hence reporting of the clause 3(ix)(f) is notapplicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has notraised money by way of initial public offer or further public offerincluding debtinstruments and term
loans. Also, Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of the shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x) of the order are not applicable to the
company and hence notcommented upon.

Based uponthe audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, we report
that no fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
year. Also, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the company which could be considered while
determining the Nature, Timing and Extent of the Audit procedures. hence, reporting under clause 3(xi) is notapplicable.

In our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not
applicable tothe Company.

Inouropinion, alltransactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the CompaniesAct,
2013 andthe details have beendisclosedin the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a. In our opinionthe company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of
itsbusiness.

b. We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company during the year and
till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the

Company has notentered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,

the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(@) TheCompanyisregistered under section 45-lAofthe Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934.

(b)  Thecompany has notconducted any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities withouta valid Certificate
of Registration (CoR) from Reserve bank of IndiaAct, 1934;

(c) TheCompanyisnotaCore Investment Company (CIC) asdefinedinthe regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India.

(d) ThereisnoCICasapartofthe group.
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(xvii) Thecompany has notincurred Cashlosses during the financial year covered by our auditand the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the financial year.

(xix) Onthe basis offinancial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, otherinformation accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has cometo our
attention, which causes usto believe thatany material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit reportsindicating the
company is not capable of meetingits liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and whenthey falldue withina
period of one year fromthe balance sheet date. We, however, state that thisis notan assurance as to future viability of
the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit reportand we neither give
any guarantee norany assurance thatall liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
getdischarged by the company as they fall due.

(xx) The CSRrequirements are notapplicable onthe company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xx) is notapplicable.

For :Sudhir Agarwal & Associates
(Formerly M/sSRD P & CO.)
Chartered Accountants

FRNo. 509930C

CA Apoorv Agarwal Dated : 28th May 2024
(Partner) Place: New Delhi
M. No. 571062

UDIN : 24571062BKHIXQ6165
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
31-March-2024 31-March-2023
ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 6 3.49 2.89
(b) Loans 7 1.47 15.49
(c) Investments 8 75.60 85.09
(d) Other financial assets 9 45,12 26.93
Total financial asset s (A) 125.68 130.40
(2) Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories 10 391.93 387.44
(b) Current tax assets (net) - .
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 0.72 0.90
(d) Tangible Assets 11(a) 0.97 1.03
Total non-financial asset s (B) 393.62 389.37
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 519.30 519.77
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-financial liabilities
(a) Provisions 12 0.54 0.53
Total non-financial liabilities 0.54 0.53
TOTAL LIABILITIES (C) 0.54 0.53
(2) EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 13(a) 200.00 200.00
(b) Other equity 13(b) 318.76 319.24
TOTAL EQUITY (D) 518.76 519.24
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (C+D) 519.30 519.77

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

For :Sudhir Agarwal & Associates
(Formerly M/s SR D P & CO.)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C)
CA Apoorv Agarwal

M. No. 571062

(PARTNER)

UDIN : 24571062BKHIXQ6165

PLACE : DELHI
DATED : 28th May 2024

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

RATTAN SINGHANIA
Whole Time Director

DIN : 00147685

ALKA SHARMA
CFO

ARUN KUMAR GARG
DIRECTOR

DIN : 00161007

BHAVNA SETH
COMPANY SECRETARY
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No.  For the year ended  For the year ended
31-March-2024 31-March-2023
Revenue from operations
Interestincome 14 (a) 211 2.18
Net gain after fair value changes 14 (b) 40.04 73.57
Dividend income 15 8.56 7.59
Total revenue from operations 50.71 83.34
Total income 50.71 83.34
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expenses 16 41.07 38.85
Other expenses 17 8.35 7.80
Depreciation 18 0.06 0.62
Total expenses 49.48 47.27
Profit before tax 1.23 36.06
Tax expense:
Current Year Tax 1.67 3.00
I.T. for earlier years written Back 0.14 0.08
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 0.18 0.08
Profit for the year after tax [A] (0.48) 33.06

Other Comprehensive Income
A) Item that will be reclassified to profit and loss
Equity Instrument through OTHER comprehensive income - -
B) Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (0.48) 33.06
Earnings per equity share (Rs.)

Basic earnings per share 19 (0.02) 1.65
Diluted earnings per share (0.02) 1.65

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

For :Sudhir Agarwal & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
(Formerly M/s SR D P & CO.) CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C) RATTAN SINGHANIA ARUN KUMAR GARG
CA Apoorv Agarwal Whole Time Director DIRECTOR
M. No. 571062 DIN : 00147685 DIN : 00161007
(PARTNER)
UDIN : 24571062BKHIXQ6165 ALKA SHARMA BHAVNA SETH

CFO COMPANY SECRETARY
PLACE : DELHI

DATED : 28th May 2024
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

Equity share capital

Equity shares Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Number of shares Amount
At 31 March 2022 2,000,000 200.00
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 March 2023 2,000,000 200.00
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 March 2024 2,000,000 200.00
Other equity Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Reserves and surplus Items of other Total
comprehensive income
Special |Securities Retained Acturial gain/ Equity
reserve | premium earnings (loss) on instruments
defined through
benefits other
obligations comprehensive
income
Balance at 31 March 2022 25.62 15.45 245.11 - - 286.18
Investment through other
comprehensive item - - - 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit for the year - - 33.06 - - 33.06
Add : from retained earning - - - - - -
Transfer to special reserve 6.50 - (6.50) - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 32.12 15.45 271.67 - - 319.24
Investment through other
comprehensive item - - - - - -
Profit for the year - - (0.48) - - (0.48)
Transfer to special reserve - - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2024 32.12 15.45 271.19 - - 318.76
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31-March-2024 31-March-2023

Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

Profit /(loss) before tax 1.23 36.06

Adjustment for:

Depreciation 0.06 0.62

Net (gain)/loss arising on investments mandatorily

measured at Fair value through profit and loss 9.49 (16.79)

Provision made 0.01 0.05

Movement in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables and
other financial assets

(Increase)/decrease in Inventories (4.49) (15.73)
(Increase)/decrease in loans 14.02 5.11
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (18.19) (9.65)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities - -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations T 213 W
Taxes / Deferred Tax (short / excess) -1.53 -2.10
Cash generated from/(used in) operations [A] 0.60 (2.43)

Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities
(Increase) / Decrease in investments - -
Payment for acquisition of Property, plant and

equipments including capital advances - (0.18)
Cash generated from/(used in) investing activities [B] - (0.18)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B] 0.60 (2.61)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.89 5.50
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3.49 2.89

Net Change (+) Increase / (-) Decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents [A+B] 0.60 (2.61)

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

For :Sudhir Agarwal & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
(Formerly M/s SR D P & CO.) CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C) RATTAN SINGHANIA ARUN KUMAR GARG
CA Apoorv Agarwal Whole Time Director DIRECTOR
M. No. 571062 DIN : 00147685 DIN : 00161007
(PARTNER)
UDIN : 24571062BKHIXQ6165 ALKA SHARMA BHAVNA SETH

CFO COMPANY SECRETARY
PLACE : DELHI

DATED : 28th May 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

@)

@)

(©)

4)

®)

(6)

1 Corporate information

The companyis mainly dealingin stocks, securities and commodities and also sometime givesinter corporate loansand
advances. The Company does not have any subsidiary or holding company.

2 Significantaccounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
("IndAS") notified under section 133 ofthe Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended under the Companies Act 2013 and under the historical cost
convention onthe accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, and
on the basis of accounting principle of a going concern in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principal (GAAP). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where anewly issued accounting
standard s initially adopted or arevision to an existing accounting standard requires achange inthe accounting
policy hitherto in use. The financial statements are presented in Lakhs or decimal thereof unless otherwise
specified.

Revenue from operations
Interest Income

a) UnderIndAS 109, Interestincome is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as
measured atfair value through Profitandloss (FVTPL).

Dividend Income

Dividendincome isrecognised whenitis actually received
a. Whenthe righttoreceive the paymentis established.
b. itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
C. the amount ofthe dividend can be measured reliably

Taxes

Current tax

Currenttax assets and liabilities are measured atthe amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based ontax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted atthe Balance sheetdate.

Currentincome taxes are recognized in profitor loss exceptto the extentthat the tax relates to items recognized
outside profitorloss, eitherin other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positiontaken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjected to
interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferredtaxis recognised ontemporary differences betweenthe carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiesinthe
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Property , plant and equipment

Property, plantand equipement are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impairmentloss, ifany. Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing costs, and
any costdirectly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on
foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Depreciation

Depreciationis calculated as perthe estimated usefullife of assets prescribed by the Schedule I tothe Companies
Act2013.
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@)

®)

9)

(10)

Derecognition of assets

Anitem of property plant & equipmentand any significant partinitially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
orwhen nofuture economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
ofthe assetisincluded inthe income statementwhenthe assetis derecognised.

Trade Investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests. All other
investments other than trade investments are either classified as current orlong-term, based on Management's
intention atthe time of purchase. Currentinvestments are valued atlower of cost or Net Realised Value /
Market Value Categorywise. Long term investments are valued at cost less permanent diminution, if any, of
eachinvestment.

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation and
impairmentloss, ifany. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, and any costdirectly attributable to
bringing the assetto its working condition for the intended use and netcharges on foreign exchange contracts
and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Derecognition of assets

Anitem ofintangible assetand any significant partinitially recognizedis derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
assetisincludedinthe income statementwhenthe assetis derecognized.

Contingent Liablilities, if any are not provided for in the accounts and are shown separately in Notes on
Accounts.

Underthe previous Gaap, non-currentinvestments were stated at cost or NRV whichever is lower where
applicable, provision was made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in valuation of such investments.
Under IndAS, equity instrument [other than investmentin subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates] have
been classified as Fair Value through Profit/Loss(Retained Earnings) through anirrevocable election atthe
date of transition. Further, under previous GAAP, joint ventures were consolidated using ‘proportionate
consolidation’method. Under IndAS, joint ventures have been accounted using ‘equity method’

3 Accounting Policies not specifically referred to or otherwise are consistent and in consonance with generally accepted
accounting principles keeinginview IND-AS.

4 The Financial Statements have been prepared as per schedule l11; Division Il of the Companies Act 2013 following
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 on NBFC. The company has adopted Indian Accounting
Standards (IND-AS) with effect from 1st April 2019 and effective date of such transition is 1st April 2018. The
results have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rule, 2015 (INd As)
prescribed under section 133 of the Comanies Act 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and policies
tothe extentapplicable.

5 Information required pursuantto Schedule Il Division Il of the Companies Act 2013 and IND-AS have been givento the
extentapplicable to the activities of the company.

6 Cash and cash equivalents

Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31-March-2024 31-March-2023
Cashinhand 0.61 0.85
Balances with banks (CurrentAccounts) 2.88 2.04
Total 3.49 2.89
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7

8

Loans (at amortised cost)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
31-March-2024 31-March-2023

(A) Loans
Unsecured 1.47 15.49
Total (A)-Gross 1.47 15.49
Less: Impairment loss allowance 0.00 0.00
Total (A)-Net 1.47 15.49

(B) Others
Total (B) 0.00 0.00
Total (A) +(B) 1.47 15.49

Investment s (At Fair V alue)

Investment in Equity Sharesdesignated at Fair V

alue through Comprehensive Income

Particulars As at31-March-2024
Atfair value Total

(1) Equity instruments
i) Quoted

a) 3300 Equity Shares of Hindustan Unilever Limited* 74.72 74.72

b) 3000 Equity Shares of Oswal Chemicals and Fertilisers Limited* 0.87 0.87
Total — Gross (A) 75.60 75.60
() Investmentsoutside India - -
(i) InvestmentsinIndia 75.60 75.60
Total (B) 75.60 75.60
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C)
Total—NetD=(A)-(C) 75.60 75.60
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9

10

Investment s (At Fair V alue)

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31-March-2023
Atfair value Total
(1) Equity instruments
i) Quoted
a) 3300 Equity Shares of Hindustan Unilever Limited* 84.49 84.49
b) 3000 Equity Shares of Oswal Chemicals and Fertilisers Limited* 0.60 0.60
Total — Gross (A) 85.09 85.09
(i) Investments outside India - -
(i) Investmentsin India 85.09 85.09
Total (B) 85.09 85.09
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C)
Total—Net D= (A)-(C) 85.09 85.09
Other financial assets
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31-March-2024 | 31-March-2023
Tradereceivables 17.97 0.02
Otherassets 25.00 26.91
Income Tax Refund Receivables 214 0.00
Total 45.12 26.93
Inventories
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31-March-2024 | 31-March-2023
Stockintrade 391.93 387.44
391.93 387.44
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11 (a) Tangible asset s

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Car Computer Total
& Software
Cost
As atMarch 31,2022 16.48 2.56 19.04
Additions 0.00 0.18 0.18
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2023 16.48 2.74 19.22
Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
As atMarch 31, 2024 16.48 2.74 19.22
Accumulative Depreciation:
As atMarch 31,2022 15.14 2.43 17.57
Additions 0.00 0.10 0.62
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2023 15.66 2.53 18.19
Additions 0.00 0.06 0.06
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
AsatMarch 31,2024 15.66 2.59 18.25
Net book value:
AsatMarch 31,2023 0.82 021 1.03
As atMarch 31, 2024 0.82 0.15 0.97
12 Provisions:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
31stMarch 2024 31stMarch 2023

Expense Payable 0.54 0.50
Others (income Tax Payable) - 0.03
Total 0.54 0.53
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13 (a) Equity Share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Preference shares of
Rs.100each

Issued, subscribed and
paid-up:

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paidup

Compulsorily Convertible
Preference shares of Rs.100
eachfully paidup

Total

2,000,000 200.00

Equity shares
Particulars As at As at
31-March-2024 31-March-2023
Number Amount Number | Amount
of shares (Rs.in | of shares (Rs.in
lakhs) lakhs)
Authorized:

2,000,000 200.00

200.00

200.00

2,000,000 200.00

2,000,000 200.00

200.00

200.00

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company on reporting date:

Name of the shareholder As at As at
31-March-2024 31-March-2023
Numbers | Percentage of Numbers | Percentage of
of shares shareholding of shares shareholding
Ashoka Industrials Resources Ltd. 390000 19.50 390000 19.50
Path Finders Private Limited 341200 17.06 341200 17.06
EssKay Mercantiles Limited 189500 9.48 204500 10.23
Svam Softwares Limited 140000 7.00 140000 7.00
Rattan Singhania 158394 7.92 158394 7.92
SarojSinghania 145000 7.25 145000 7.25
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
Particulars As at As at
31-March-2024 31-March-2023
Shares atthe beginning ofthe year 2,000,000 2,000,000
Shares at the end of the year 2,000,000 2,000,000
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(b) Other equity Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31-March-2024 | 31-March-2023
Special reserve
Atthe beginning of the year 32.12 25.62
Add : Transfer from Profit & Loss A/c 0.00 6.50
Closing balance of special reserve (A)* 32.12 32.12
Security PremiumAccount
Atthe beginning of the year 15.45 15.45
Closing balance of security premium account (B) 15.45 15.45
Retained earnings
Atthe beginning of the year 271.67 24511
Add: Net profitfor the current year (0.48) 33.06
Add: Unrealised gain onaccountof Fair valuation change - -
Less: Expensesincurredinrelationto share capital 0.00 0.00
Add: Deferred tax on share issue expenses 0.00 0.00
Less: Dividend paidon CCPS 0.00 0.00
Less: Dividend distribution tax paid 0.00 0.00
Less: Transfertoreserve 0.00 6.50
Closing balance of retained earnings 271.19 271.67
Total 318.76 319.24

*Special Reserve represents the reserve created pursuantto the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934 ("the RBIAct"). In

terms of Section 45-1C ofthe RBIAct.

Interest income Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March 2024 ended 31 March 2023
Onfinancial Interest income | Total Onfinancial | Interest income | Total
assets on securities assets on securities
measured at | classified at fair measured at | classified at fair
amortised value through amortised value through
cost profit or loss cost profit or loss
Interestincome 0.00 21 21 0.00 2.13 2.13
Other Interestincome 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.05
Total 0.00 21 211 0.00 2.18 2.18
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b.

15

16

Net gain/(loss) after fair value changes

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2024 31stMarch 2023
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value (A)
-Stock of securities - -
Total (A) - -
Profit (+)/Loss (-) on sale of stock of securities (actual) 49.53 56.77
Profit (+)/Loss (-) on sale of long term investment (Net) 0.00 0.00
Net gain/(loss) on stock of securities due to fair value
change (B)
-Adjustmenton account of fair valuaton of investment -9.49 16.80
Total (B) 40.04 7357
Total (A+B) 40.04 73.57
Breakup of realised / unrealised gain/(loss)
Rs. in Lakhs
Total sale proceeds frominvestment - -
Less :- Costofaquisition - -
Netgain - -
Less :-Adjustment on account of fair valuation of investment
already recognisedinlastyear - -
Netcurrentyearrealised Profit(+) / Loss(-) - -
Unrealised fair value change (9.49) 16.80
Total current year gain (9.49) 16.80
Dividend Income Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2024 31stMarch 2023
Dividend Income from equity shares 8.56 7.59
Total 8.56 7.59
Employee benefits expenses Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2024 31stMarch 2023
Salariesand wages 16.78 14.60
Director's Remuneration 24.00 24.00
Staff welfare expenses 0.29 0.25
Total 41.07 38.85
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Other expenses Rsin Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2024 31stMarch 2023
Society's Common Maintenance Charges 0.47 0.47
Printing and Statioonery 0.35 0.31
Communication Costs 0.28 0.29
Repairs and maintenance 2.87 2.39
Advertisementand publicity 0.24 0.25
Petty Office Expenses 0.16 0.21
Auditor's fees and expenses
-foraudit fees 0.18 0.18
-for Quarterly Reports 0.18 -
Annual Listing Fee 0.65 0.65
Legaland Professional charges 1.13 1.15
Annual Service Contracts 0.33 0.37
Director?sfees, allowances and expenses 0.42 0.29
Miscellaneous expenditure 1.09 1.24
Total 8.35 7.80
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses Rsin Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 0.06 0.62
Amortisation ofintangible assets 0.00 0.00
Total 0.06 0.62
Earning per share (EPS)

Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 33 issued by

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31stMarch 2024 31stMarch 2023

Profitfor the year, as per Statement of Profit & Loss

(Rs.inLakhs)) (0.48) 33.06

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of

basic/diluted earnings per share (in Nos) (Face Value Rs. 10) 2000000 2000000

Basic Earning Pershare (Rs.) (0.02) 1.65

Diluted Earning Per share (Rs.) (0.02) 1.65
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22
23
24
25

26
27

28

29

30

31

32

33.

Details of Purchases & Sales
Particulars As on As on
31stMarch 2024 31stMarch 2023
Rs. Rs.
Opening Stock 38743951.87 37170952.34
Purchases 55153051.53 19126872.76
Sales 59656987.13 23230964.89
Closing Stock 39193213.47 38743951.87
Expensesinforeign currencyincurred during the year (Royalty, Knowhow, Professional and Consultation Fee, Interest
andother) (Previous Year ....NIL) NIL
Remittanceinforeign currency during the year (Previous Year ....NIL) NIL
Earningsinforeign exchange duringthe year (Previous Year ....NIL) NIL
Taxdeducted atsource (Previous Year Rs. 97104/-) Rs.106741/-
In the opinion of the Directors, Current Assets, loans and advances have the Value at which they are stated in the

Balance Sheet, ifrealised in the ordinary course of business.
The company did not owe any sumto any micro, smalland medium enterprises as on 31st March 2024.

Dividendsreceived consistof Rs.7,24,575.19 from stock in trade (Previous year Rs. 6,35,503.18) and Rs.1,32,000/-
from Long Term Investments (Previous Year Rs.1,23,300).

Thebusiness activities ofthe company fallin one segment only; hence segmentreporting as perAS-108is notapplicable
and allthe activities beinginIndia, there is no separate reportable geographical segment.

Depriciation ontangible assets has been provided based on useful life prescribed in schedule Il of the CompaniesAct
2013. Usefullife of intangible assets has been taken as provided in Income Tax Rules.

Inventories have beenvalued atlower of cost or netrealisable value / market value categorywise as required under
ICDS.

Revenue fromoperations consist of trading income from securities, long term capital gains if any, dividends and interest
income.

No provision has been made for the shortfall, if any, in respect of the cost value and the market value of long term
investments asthe Directors are of the opinion thatdiminution, ifany, in value is not permanent.

First time adoption of Ind AS

i) IndAS 101 (First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards) provides a suitable starting point foraccounting
inaccordance with IndAS and s required to be mandatorily followed by first-time adopters. The Company has
prepared the opening Balance Sheetas per IndAS as of 1stApril, 2018 (the transition date) by:

a. recognising allassets and liabilities whose recognitionis required by IndAS,
b. notrecognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by INdAS

c. reclassifying items from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to Ind AS as required
underIndAS, and

d. applying IndAS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities
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ii. Reconcillation of equity as reported under previous GAAP is summaried as follows :

Particulars asat31/03/23 asat31/03/24
(end of last period [end of last period
presented under presented under
previous gaap) previous gaap)
Equity as reported under
previous GAAP attributable to
Hind UniLeverLtd. 67.61 84.49
Oswal Chemand Fert. Ltd. 0.69 0.60
TOTAL 68.30 85.09
Impact of measuring Investment at fmv through OCI 16.79 (9.49)
Hind UniLeverLtd. 84.49 74.72
Oswal Chemand Fert. Ltd. 0.60 0.87
TOTAL 85.09 75.60
34  Currenttaxliability has been providedinthe Profit & Loss account.
35 Otherthansalaries,no other benefits were provided to employees.
36 Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship
Key Management personnel
Details of Key Managerial personnel are as under :
Name of key persons
Rattan Singhania Director-Whole Time
LalitkKumar Director
ArunKumar Garg Director
NeetaGoel Director
Bhavna Seth Company Secretary
AlkaSharma ChiefFinancial Officer

Related party transactions

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the
relevantfinancial year:

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
i) Key Management Personnel Asat31lsMarch2024 |Asat31sMarch 2023
Remunerationto Rattan Singhania 24.00 24.00
RemunerationtoAlka Sharma 7.00 6.44
Remunerationto Prachi Goel 0.00 0.40
Remunerationto Bhavna Seth 240 1.00
Director Meeting Feeto LalitKumar 0.10 0.04
Director Meeting FeetoArun Kumar Garg 0.10 0.04
Director Meeting Feeto Neeta Goel 0.10 0.04

37  Previous year figures

Previous yearfigures have beenregrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conformto the requirements prescribed
under Division Il of Schedule llItothe CompaniesAct, 2013




CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

38 As per latest amendment notified by MCA on March 24, 2021, the additional regulatory information is as
under :

0] The company does nothave any Immovable Property.

(i)  Disclosureregardingthe revaluation of PPE etc. is notappliable to the Company.

(i)  Thecompany has nevergranted any loan to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties.
(iv)  Thecompanydoesnothave CWIP.

(v)  Thecompanydoesnothave any Intangible assets.

(vi)  Thecompany does nothave any BenamiProperty.

(vii)  Thecompany has never borrowed any sum from any bank or any financial institution.
(viii) The company has never beendeclared awilful defaulter.

(ix)  Thecompany did nothave any relationship with any struck off Companies.

(x)  Therewas no Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies.
(xi)  Thecompany did nothave any layers of Companies.

(xii) Considering the nature of business of the company, Ratios related to Inventories, Trade Receivables, Trade
Payables, Capital Turnover, Net Profitand return oninvestments are notapplicable. The company does nothave
any trade creditors / liabilites except small provisions for expenses, hence current ratio is not applicable.
Company has nottaken any loan hence Debt Equity and Debt Service Coverage Ratio notapplicable. Applicable

ratios are asunder:
Accounting Ratios 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2023 | Reason for V ariance
Returnonequity ratio 0.00 0.16 | AsShare Marketisvolatile,
Return on capital employed 0.0023 0.07 | profitare n())/g;errtain forthe

(xiii) Thecompany had neverany Scheme of Arrangements.

(xiv) Thecompany has utilised share premium for business purposesinthe ordinary course of its business.

(xv) Therewas noundisclosedincome by the company.

(xvi) The Corporate Social Responsiblitly is notapplicable to the company.

(xvii) The company never had any kind of Crypto or Virtual Currency.

39 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(@) ContingentLiabilities- Nil (March2023-Nil).

(b)  Commitments
0] Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for - Nil
(i)  Uncalledliability on shares and other investments partly paid - Nil

40 Informationrequired pursuantto Schedule lll Division Il ofthe CompaniesAct 2013 and IND-AS have been giventothe
extentapplicable to the activities of the company.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

For :Sudhir Agarwal & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
(Formerly M/s SR D P & CO.) CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 509930C) RATTAN SINGHANIA ARUN KUMAR GARG
CA Apoorv Agarwal Whole Time Director DIRECTOR
M. No. 571062 DIN : 00147685 DIN : 00161007
(PARTNER)
UDIN : 24571062BKHIXQ6165

ALKA SHARMA BHAVNA SETH
PLACE : DELHI CFO COMPANY SECRETARY

DATED : 28th May 2024




PROXY FORM
Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

Registered Office: 1002, Arunachal, 19 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-1 10 001.
Email id : capital89@yahoo.com, Website :  www.capfin.in
Tel. No. +91-11 23315050, 23718585,
CIN: L67120DL1983PLC016575

Name of the Member
Registered address
E-mail Id:

Folio No/

DP ID- ClientID

I/We, being the member of Shares of above mentioned company hereby appoint:
Name

Address

E-mail Id:

Signature

Or failing him / her
Name

Address

E-mail Id:

Signature

Or failing him / her
Name

Address

E-mail Id:

Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Monday, 23rd September, 2024 at 11.00 A.M. at the registered office of the Company and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution |Resolutions Optional
No. refer note 3 below
Ordinary Business For Against
1. Adoption of Financial Statements and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon for the financial period ended on March 31, 2024
2. Re-appointment of Shri Lalit Kumar who retires by rotation
3. Ratification of Auditors
Special Business
4, Reappointment of Smt. Neeta Goel as Non Executive Director of the Company
5. Reappointment of Shri Rattan Singhania as Wholetime Director of the Company.




Signedthis .......coviiii i dayof ....cocooveiiiiiiiiiin, 2024.

AFFIX
REVENUE
. . STAMP
Signature of the Member Signature of the Proxy Holder(s)
Note:-

1.  This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

Itis optional to put a ‘X' in the appropriate column against the Resolution indicated in the Box. If you leave the 'For'and
'Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she think
appropriate.

4.  Please complete all details including detail of member(s) in above box before submission.



———— e

CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

Registered Office: 1002, Arunachal, 19 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-1 10 001.
Email id : capital89@yahoo.com, Website :  www.capfin.in
Tel. No. +91-11 23315050, 23718585,
CIN: L67120DL1983PLC016575

ATTENDANCE SLIP

40th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
MONDAY, 23“ SEPTEMBER, 2024 at 11.00 A.M. at
1002, ARUNACHAL, 19 BARAKHAMBA ROAD, NEW DELHI-110001

Name of the Shareholder/Proxy*

Folio No./DP ID & Client ID*

Address

No. of shares held

I/ We hereby record my/ our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Place:
Dated :

(Signature of the shareholder/proxy*
to be signed at the attendance counter)

*Delete whichever is not applicable

Note :

Members are requested to bring copy of Annual Report along with them to the Annual General Meeting. Please complete
this Attendance Slip and handover at the entrance gate. Only Members or their Proxies are entitled to be present at the
Meeting.









If undelivered, please returnto :

CAPITAL FINVEST LIMITED

1002, Arunachal,
19 Barakhamba Road,
New Delhi-110001.



